
 
 

CHARITABLE TRUST COMMITTEE 
Agenda 
 
 

Date Tuesday 21 October 2025 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue JR Clynes Building Second Floor Meeting Room 1 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires advice on any 
item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her 
ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Alex Bougatef or 
Constitutional Services at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this agenda is Constitutional Services – email: 
constitutional.services@oldham.gov.uk    
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - Any Member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the contact officer by 12.00 noon on Thursday, 16 
October 2025. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may 
record / film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the 
press are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends a 
meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional 
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE CHARITABLE TRUST COMMITTEE 
 Councillors Marland, Bashforth, Rustidge (Chair), Ball, Charters (Vice-

Chair) and Sheldon 
 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

3   Declarations of Interest  

Public Document Pack

mailto:constitutional.services@oldham.gov.uk


 
 

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes (Pages 3 - 6) 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Charitable Trust Committee, held 23rdJune 
2025, are attached for approval. 

6   Clayton Playing Fields Update  

 Director of Legal to report 

7   Exclusion of the Press and the Public  

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business, pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information, under paragraph 3 as defined in the provisions of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act, to the Local Government Act 1972 and public interest 
would not be served in publishing the information. 

8   Saddleworth Football Club Proposal to upgrade football pitches at Bishop Park, 
Denshaw (Pages 7 - 36) 

  



 

CHARITABLE TRUST COMMITTEE 
23/06/2025 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Rustidge (Chair)  
Councillors Ball and Charters (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Emma Barton  
 Kaidy McCann Constitutional Services 
 Zoe Theofilopoulos  

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors 
Bashforth, Marland and Sheldon. 
 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 
 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 17th March 
2025 be approved as a correct record. 
 

6   CLAYTON PLAYING FIELDS   

Consideration was given to a report which updated Members on 
activities at Clayton Playing Field to safeguard, improve and 
utilise the asset for community benefit and sought committee 
endorsement for the recommendations set out in the repot in 
order to inform a formal decision by the relevant portfolio holder. 
 
Members were informed that the asset comprised 9.85 hectares 
of playing fields and open recreation space, with a supporting 
car park. The asset was a charitable asset and was owned 
freehold by the Council via the Charity Committee. There was a 
cabin on-site providing changing facilities to support the use of 
the playing fields. The whole asset was designated as a Town 
Green. Boundary Park neighboured the site together with Little 
Wembley training ground (a designated Asset of Community 
Value (18 October 2021)). It was noted that there were no 
proposals to change the ownership of the land or its status as an 
important community asset. 
 
Members were made aware of concerns that had been raised by 
local residents and elected members about tree planting on 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 

Clayton Playing Fields. City of Trees had been working with the 
Council to enhance and protect woodland areas and the green 
nature of the borough. Trees were planted to create a small new 
woodland area adjacent to Clayton Playing Fields. Community 
concerns related to the location of where the tress had been 
planted, surveillance and safety parameters due to how close 
together the trees had been planted, and whether there was an 
impact on the designate helipad used for air ambulances. After 
investigating the matter, the following had been identified for 
Committee Members to note:  

 title records were not correct with the Land Registry, and 
therefore officers did not realise that the location of the 
tree planting fell under the charity committee remit. This 
is being rectified and the land titles corrected.  

 the contractor planting the trees has installed them at the 
wrong spacing compared to the instructions from officers. 

 
Members were informed of community concerns which included 
antisocial behaviour from dog walkers and quad bikes. Members 
were also advised of the maintenance agreement as both 
Oldham Athletic Football Club and Oldham Rugby Clubs now 
trained and played matches at the stadium at Boundary Park 
(adjacent to Clayton Playing Fields), the SportsTown partnership 
were interested in supporting the local community to access 
sports and had offered to maintain the playing fields on the 
Council’s behalf to the Council’s current standards. Members 
were asked to note the recent Cabinet decision to accept the 
Community Regeneration Partnership funding designated for the 
support of SportsTown. A proposed capital allocation of 
£5,000,000 would be utilised to support the delivery of 
SportsTown Phase 1 which would include: 

 Create new facilities for Higher Education, (HE), skills 
provision in the top floor of the Joe Royle Stand, including 
classrooms, access to specialist kit and changing 
facilities. 

 Modification of the Joe Royle Stand to facilitate the 
above, including relocation of gym to create a new 
safeguarding access to the venue. 

 Creation of new all-weather pitch on “Little Wembley” 
facility and 3G pitch, substantially increasing local use, 
access and participation. 

 Provision of new outdoor netball court facilities (Oldham 
is a top-performer in netball) and University 5G. 
 

Members were provided with the following recommendations: 
1. approve retrospective tree planting around the edge of 

the area;  
2. note that a site visit will be arranged with residents and 

ward members to review and identify remedial actions 
to correct the errors detected;  

3. delegate to the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) any 
further resolutions and actions on this matter 

4. to introduce a designated walking route around the pitch 
areas (around the outside of the fields) to continue to 

Page 4



 

allow local residents to walk their dogs, but away from 
the playing pitch areas;  

5. to designate a dog park area (exact location to be agreed 
at the site visit with local ward members and 
residents) where dogs can run off the lead in a safe 
space;  

6. to permit the introduction of dog poo bins along the new 
walking route and by the designated dog park to 
encourage owners from allow their pets to leave a 
mess on the playing pitch areas. 

7. to install a single rail (knee-high) barrier around the 
perimeter of the pitches, minimising the impact on the 
community playing fields and their intended use, and 
allowing continued community access, but preventing 
unwanted vehicles from causing damage to the area.  

8. to approve a Service Level Agreement (SLA) to be drawn 
up for the maintenance of the playing fields in return 
for mid-week / daytime use of the pitch areas (i.e. at 
times when the area is not used by local community 
groups). The pitches would still be available for use by 
the local community and other clubs and community 
groups in the evenings and at weekends (as now). 

9. to note and agree the proposals for a Service Level 
Agreement with the SportsTown partnership and to 
delegate the details of the agreement and final 
approval of the maintenance agreement to the Deputy 
Chief Executive (Place) and the relevant portfolio 
holder. 

 
RESOLVED that the recommendations be noted and approved. 
 

7   LAND AT LADHILL LANE   

Consideration was given to a report which advised Members of 
a request to grant easement to United Utilities with such 
pipes/drains serving Fourways’ development on nearby land. 
When eventually the precise location and extent of the land that 
was going to be affected by this proposal was established and a 
copy of the registered title was obtained, it transpired that the 
land affected was part of charitable trust playing fields and 
recreation ground. It was noted that no consideration 
whatsoever had been offered by Fourways, not even a market 
value payment for the grant of the easement. 
 
Members were advised that even a market value payment for 
the easement would not be sufficient to make the grant of the 
easement in the best interests of the Charity. What would need 
to be offered is something which would provide a clear and 
unequivocal net benefit to the Charity. It was noted that a full 
decision was not needed by members at this point as the 
Committee needed to take on board the implications of the 
proposal or consider that kind of negotiation. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee instructs Oldham Borough  
Council Legal Services to: 

Page 5



 

a) disclose the Scheme relating to this Charity governing the 
recreation ground/playing fields at Ladhill Lane, Oldham (being 
information which is not available from the Land Registry but 
only from the Council’s own records) to Fourways’ solicitors (and 
therefore Fourways) in writing (that is by email), and 
b) to respond to Fourways’ solicitors in writing (that is by email) 
that Fourways Projects NW Ltd’s proposal does not offer 
anything to the Charity which would make a grant of the 
easement proposed to United Utilities in the best interests the 
Charity.” 
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 6.26 pm 
 

Page 6



Document is Restricted

Page 7

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	8 Saddleworth Football Club Proposal to upgrade football pitches at Bishop Park, Denshaw
	Appendix 1 Quote Bishops Park
	Appendix 2 Pitch Maintenance Agreement Guidance Proforma


